015

IN	THE	SUP	REME	COURT
	OI	TH S	ORTDA	\

FILED
9/D J. WHITE
0CT 25 1995

CASE NO. 86,650

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By ______
Chief Deputy Clerk

PHILLIP CAMPBELL,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

On Petition for Writ of Certiorari from a Decision of the First District Court of Appeal

SECOND AMENDED
JURISIDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

WM. J. SHEPPARD
RICHARD W. SMITH
Sheppard and White, P.A.
215 Washington Street
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
(904) 356-9661

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

ISSUES PRESENTED

I.

INVOKE ITS WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE DECISION BELOW EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THIS COURT IN STATE V. JONES, 483 So.2d 433 (FLA. 1986), AS WELL AS THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN HARTSFIELD V. STATE, 629 So.2d 1020 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1983)

II.

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD INVOKE ITS JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE DECISION BELOW EXPRESSLY CONSTRUES THE FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The First District in <u>Campbell v. State</u>, <u>so.2d</u>, 20 F.L.W. D1232 (Fla. 1st DCA, September 13, 1995), held that the interest advanced in a "police traffic safety stop" outweighed the intrusion on individuals' Fourth Amendment rights. In reaching its decision, the First District expressly disregarded the reasoning of this Court's decision in <u>State v. Jones</u>, 483 So.2d 433 (Fla. 1986), and the Fourth District's decision in <u>Hartsfield v. State</u>, 629 So.2d 1020 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983), and it expressly construed the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.

In express and direct conflict with the <u>Jones</u> decision, the First District below ignored the reasoning of this Court and found that a roadblock to advance the interest of preventing speeders, educating the public, and checking for equipment problems was sufficient to outweigh the intrusion upon an individual's Fourth Amendment rights. These interests are certainly less compelling than the interest advanced in a sobriety check point as in <u>Jones</u>. In fact, the State treats these interests as minimal.

Additionally, the <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u> courts, in expressly interpreting the Fourth Amendment, required advance written uniform guidelines covering the procedures to be used in the roadblock. The First District in the instant case found that such written guidelines were unnecessary, in express and direct conflict with this Court and the Fourth District. Accordingly, this Court should invoke its discretionary jurisdiction to resolve the express and direct inter-jurisdictional conflict as well as to review the First District's express interpretation of the Fourth Amendment.

ARGUMENT

I.

COURT WHETHER THIS SHOULD INVOKE ITS JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE DECISION BELOW DIRECTLY CONFLICTS EXPRESSLY AND WITH THE DECISION OF THIS COURT IN STATE V. JONES, So.2d 433 (FLA. 1986), AS WELL AS THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN HARTSFIELD V. STATE, 629 So.2d 1020 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1993.

Pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), this Court should invoke its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below of the First District Court of Appeal. The petitioner was charged and convicted upon a plea of no contest to drug possession charges, reserving the right to appeal denial of his dispositive Motion to Suppress evidence. The question before the court below was whether a "police traffic safety stop" operated by the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office violated petitioner's Fourth Amendment right to be free of unreasonable searches and seizures.

Petitioner was stopped in his vehicle at a "police traffic safety stop" by officers of the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office. The "safety stop" was conducted largely at night on a three-quarter mile segment of a two-lane road between two curves in a residential area during busy traffic conditions. [9/2/93 Tr. 16-17, 24, 38]. The purported reasons for the stop was to slow down vehicles, to educate and to check for equipment problems. [9/17/93 Tr. 51]. After it was discovered that petitioner had a suspended license, he was transported to the county jail where officers searched him and found powder cocaine and marijuana in his sock. The First District below, in Campbell v. State, ____ So.2d ____, 20 F.L.W. D2132 (Fla.

1st DCA, September 13, 1995), found that the trial court did not err in denying petitioner's Motion to Suppress the seized evidence.

One judge dissented. [See Appendix 1].

In reaching its conclusion below, the First District analyzed the balancing test established by the U.S. Supreme Court and the specific requirements of the Florida Supreme Court for roadblocks and affirmed petitioner's conviction. The First District below questioned the continued viability of State v. Jones, 483 so.2d 433 (Fla. 1986), and found it was no longer viable law. The decision below expressly and directly conflicts with the reasoning of the Jones court and the petitioner accordingly seeks to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

In <u>Jones</u>, this Court considered whether a roadblock established for the purpose of apprehending DUI drivers was constitutionally valid. This Court applied the <u>Brown v. Texas</u>, 443 U.S. 47 (1979) balancing test which includes consideration of the gravity of the public concern. <u>Id</u>. at 435. Although the gravity of detecting drunken drivers is great, it was not sufficient to authorize the roadblock in <u>Jones</u>. This Court found the roadblock invalid. <u>Id</u>. at 439; <u>see Michigan Department of State Police v. Sitz</u>, 496 U.S. 444 (1990).

In the instant case, the gravity of the public concern relates to preventing speeding, educating the public, and checking for equipment problems. These interests are even less compelling than a sobriety check point. In fact, petitioners have found no cases authorizing the State to stop individuals to advance these interests under similar circumstances. The interests allegedly advanced are simply insufficient to justify the intrusive roadblock in the instant case.

The dissenting judge in the case below explained the great difference between the interests advanced in other roadblocks and the interests allegedly advanced in the instant case:

As the advanced governmental interest becomes more compelling, logically, under the balancing test, it will carry more weight.

though the Florida Legislature has Even recognized a state interest in vehicle safety adopting laws mandating certain motor vehicle equipment, sections 316.215-316.6105, Florida Statutes (1993), and by authorizing police officers to stop and inspect a motor vehicle "upon reasonable cause to believe that vehicle is unsafe or not equipped as required by law," section 316.610(1), Florida Statutes (1993), the Legislature has not concluded that the public's concern with vehicle safety is sufficiently grave to enact specific statutory authorization for advancing the enforcement of motor vehicle safety and equipment laws through the use of police roadblocks. Further, in 1981, the Legislature state-wide system repealed Florida inspection vehicle mandatory motor certification, Ch. 81-212, 1981 Fla. Laws 840, sections 325.11-325.33, Florida repealing Statutes (1979) [repealed]; and, even while the safety inspection system was in place, operation of an automobile without a valid inspection sticker was only a "non criminal violation." State v. Webb, 335 So.2d 826, 827 (Fla. 1976). Thus, the state interest in preventing drunk driving, upheld in Sitz as a "grave and legitimate" state interest, 496 2485-2486; in U.S. at 451, 110 S.Ct. at interdicting the flow of illegal drugs, upheld in Cardwell v. State, 482 So.2d 512 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986); or in detecting illegal aliens,

upheld in Martinez-Fuerte, 428 U.S. [543] 562, [(1976)], all must be seen as more compelling governmental interest than the state's interest in motor vehicle safety or in general education of the driving public advanced here, given the legislature's minimal regulation of this matters. This conclusion is significant when a court, as here, is required to measure the reasonableness of the Fourth Amendment seizure, because a less compelling state interest will only support a less intrusive interference with liberty.

Campbell v. State, ___ So.2d ___, 20 F.L.W. D2132 (Fla. 1st DCA,
September 13, 1995) (VanNortwick, dissenting).

These interests are further minimized when considering the extent of the intrusion upon the individual's Fourth Amendment The majority of the roadblock was conducted at night during periods of heavy traffic. [9/2/93 Tr. 29-30, 38]. Further, the roadblock was conducted on a three-quarter mile segment of road between two curves. Moreover, the roadblock was conducted in a residential area. [9/2/93 Tr. 16-17]. Based on these facts, it becomes clear that the intrusion upon the individual's Fourth Amendment right to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures outweighs the State's interest in preventing speeders, educating the public or checking for equipment problems. See, Brown v. Texas, 433 U.S. 47 (1979) (balancing legitimate governmental interest against degree of intrusion). Accordingly, this court should accept jurisdiction as the decision below expressly and directly conflicts with the reasoning of this Court in Jones.

Additionally, in <u>Jones</u>, this Court required law enforcement personnel conducting a roadblock to minimize the discretion of the field officers by issuing in advance written uniform guidelines

covering the detailed procedures to be used in the roadblock. Id. The police blocked all northbound lanes of a roadway at 438. requiring the traffic to merge into one lane and to pass an officer stationed on the roadway. Id. at 434. The officer had instructions to stop and divert every fifth automobile during heavy traffic and every third automobile during light traffic. Id. Mr. Jones' car was stopped and he thereafter failed several field Id. at 434-35. Mr. Jones was arrested and he sobriety tests. subsequently filed a pretrial motion to suppress all evidence obtained as a result of the allegedly illegal seizure. Id. at 435. The trial court denied the motion. Id. Mr. Jones entered a plea of nolo contendere, reserving the right to appeal the denial of the dispositive suppression motion. Id. The circuit court affirmed his conviction. Id. On certiorari, the Second District quashed the circuit court's affirmance and reversed the conviction, ruling that the roadblock violated Mr. Jones' Fourth Amendment right to be free from an unreasonable search and seizure. Id. at 439.

This Court in <u>Jones</u> approved the district court's opinion because:

[t]he record in this case requires us to rule that the state failed to prove that the City of Tampa roadblock procedure met the balancing test in Brown and therefore violates the requirements of the fourth amendment to the United States Constitution.

<u>Id</u>. In reaching this holding, the Court engaged in an extensive analysis of the criteria used by other courts to determine "whether a given roadblock satisfies the constitution." <u>Id</u>. at 437. The court then summarized its conclusions as follows:

Paramount among all other considerations, the fourth amendment requires that all seizures be based on either: (1) specific evidence of an existing violation; (2) а showing reasonable legislative oradministrative inspection standards are met; or (3) a showing that officers carry out the search pursuant to a plan embodying specific neutral criteria which limit the conduct of the individual officers. Because DUI roadblocks involve seizures made without anv articulable suspicion of illegal activity, most states examining this issue have ruled that such roadblocks stand or fall based on some set of neutral criteria governing the officers in the Courts requiring such a neutral plan do so out of a fear that unbridled discretion in the field invites abuse.

<u>Id</u>. at 438 (citations omitted). Based on these criteria, the <u>Jones</u> court held that detailed written guidelines governing the officers in the field are mandated for a roadblock to satisfy Fourth Amendment requirements, stating:

We...find that it is essential that a written set of uniform guidelines be issued before a roadblock can be utilized.

Law enforcement officials must conduct sobriety checkpoints so as to minimize the discretion of field officers, restricting the potential intrusion into the public's constitutional liberties. guidelines should cover in detail procedures which field officers are to follow at the roadblock. Ideally, these guidelines should set out with reasonable specificity procedures regarding the selection techniques, vehicles, detention duty assignments, and the disposition of vehicles.

Id. (citations omitted).

Similar to <u>Jones</u> is <u>Hartsfield v. State</u>, 629 so.2d 1020 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993). The Fourth District reversed the trial court's denial of a suppression motion in a sobriety roadblock case and

held that the "absence of specific written guidelines renders the roadblock operation fatally defective under <u>State v. Jones." Id.</u> at 1021. Accordingly, the instant decision, not requiring the Sheriff's Office to minimize officer discretion by use of specific written guidelines, is expressly and directly in conflict with the reasoning of Jones and Hartsfield.

II.

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD INVOKE ITS JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE DECISION BELOW EXPRESSLY CONSTRUES THE FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

Petitioner also seeks to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), since the court below expressly construed the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution in deciding whether a "police traffic safety stop" was The district court judges split as to the applicability of Jones and Hartsfield, based on the fact that the Jones case arose prior to the 1983 amendment to Article I, §12 of the Florida Section 12 provides that the right to be free from Constitution. unreasonable searches and seizures shall be construed in conformity with the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution as interpreted by the U.S. Supreme Court. The majority opinion rejected the holding of Jones despite the fact that this Court relied strictly on the Fourth Amendment in reaching its decision. Hartsfield, which relied on the Jones decision, was similarly rejected by the majority. The dissenting opinion found that the rationale of Jones was applicable for this very reason; i.e., that this Court relied

strictly on the Fourth Amendment to hold that a roadblock conducted without specific written guidelines was constitutionally invalid. This Court should invoke its discretionary jurisdiction because the court below expressly construes the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution without adequately considering the applicability of the <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u> decisions. It is important that this Court grant jurisdiction because the factual scenario which gave rise to the issues raised below is likely to arise again and because the right of the people of the State of Florida to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures is at issue.

Additionally, the First District, in balancing the legitimate government interest involved against the degree of intrusion on the individual's Fourth Amendment rights stated that the State's interest was in vehicle safety and driver education. Indeed, according to Lieutenant S.R. Weintraub of the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office, the sole reason for the roadblock was to slow people down, to educate and to check for equipment problems. [9/17/93 Tr. 51]. As to faulty equipment, the lieutenant stated the officers were looking for faulty headlights, faulty taillights, improper tint, loud mufflers, among other equipment problems. [9/2/93 Tr. 16]. Except for faulty brake lights, each problem could be observed without ever slowing down the traffic, let alone actually stopping the vehicles. [9/2/93 Tr. 16]. Indeed, the only piece of equipment brought to the roadblock to check for any safety equipment problems was a tint meter. [9/2/93 Tr. 16]. These interests, allegedly advanced, were substantially less compelling

than the State interests in preventing driving under the influence of alcohol, drug interdiction and detection of illegal aliens which interests have been advanced in other roadblocks. See, Michigan Dept. of State Police v. Sitz, 496 U.S. 444 (1990); United States v. Martinez-Fuerte, 428 U.S. 543 (1976); Cardwell v. State, 482 So.2d 502 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986).

Accordingly, this Court should invoke its discretionary review as the First District, in construing the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, allotted too much weight to the State's purported interests for the roadblock. Petitioner submits that this Court should grant discretionary jurisdiction to review the express interpretation of the Fourth Amendment search and seizure guarantees of the U.S. Constitution.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Court should accept discretionary review of the instant cause.