### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

# FILED

SID J. WHITE

NOV 20 1995

CLERK, SHIPREME GOURT

Chief Deptity Clerk

• •

CASE NO. 86,650

PHILLIP CAMPBELL,

Petitioner,

ν.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JAMES W. ROGERS
TALLAHASSEE BUREAU CHIEF,
CRIMINAL APPEALS
FLORIDA BAR NO. 325791

STEPHEN R. WHITE ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 159089

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE (S)
TABLE OF CONTENTS
TABLE OF CITATIONS
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
I.
IS THERE EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN THE DECISION BELOW AND STATE V. JONES, 483 So. 2D 433 (FLA. 1986), OR HARTSFIELD V. STATE, 629 So. 2D 1020 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1993)? (Restated)
II.
DID THE FIRST DCA EXPRESSLY CONSTRUE THE FOURTH AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION? (Restated) 8
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

# TABLE OF CITATIONS

<u>PAGE (S)</u>
<u>Ansin v. Thurston</u> , 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958) 4
Benefield v. State, 160 So.2d 706 (Fla. 1964)
<u>Brown v. Texas</u> , 443 U.S. 47, 99 S.Ct. 2637, 61 L.Ed.2d 357 (1979) 6, 8
Dept. of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888 (Fla. 1986) 3
<u>Hartsfield v. State</u> , 629 So. 2d 1020 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993) 3-6, 8
<u>Jenkins v. State</u> , 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980) 4
Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986)
<u>State v. Jones</u> , 483 So. 2d. 433 (Fla. 1986) 2-6, 8
OTHER Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const
Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii)
Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv)

#### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent, the State of Florida, the Appellee in the First District Court of Appeal and the prosecuting authority in the trial court, will be referenced in this brief as Respondent, the prosecution, or the State. Petitioner, Phillip Campbell, the Appellant in the First District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the trial court, will be referenced in this brief as Petitioner or his proper name.

"PJB" will designate Petitioner's Second Amended
Jurisdictional Brief. That symbol is followed by the appropriate
page number.

A bold typeface will be used to add emphasis. Italics appeared in original quotations, unless otherwise indicated.

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Although Petitioner has omitted a Statement of the Case and Facts, the pertinent history and facts are set out in the decision of the lower tribunal, attached in slip opinion form [hereinafter referenced as "slip op."] to Petitioner's Second Amended Jurisdictional Brief. It also can be found at 20 Fla. L. Weekly D2132.

Petitioner has interjected citations to the trial-court record (PJB 2, 5, 9). Because jurisdiction must be determined through the use of the "four corners" of the lower appellate court's opinion, these citations are inappropriate. See Jurisdictional Criteria section of Argument, infra.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner has improperly relied upon the record in the trial court and the reasoning and dissent in the First District Court of Appeal. The appropriate focus upon the operative facts, as contained within the "four corners" of the DCA's decision, reveals no express and direct conflict with this Court or another DCA. Moreover, the DCA here did not construe a constitutional provision. Instead, the lower tribunal merely applied preexisting principles in a manner consistent with Jones and other leading cases.

#### ARGUMENT

I.

IS THERE EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN THE DECISION BELOW AND STATE V. JONES, 483 So. 2D 433 (FLA. 1986), OR HARTSFIELD V. STATE, 629 So. 2D 1020 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1993)? (Restated)

# Jurisdictional Criteria

In Argument I, Petitioner contends that this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), which parallels Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. The constitution provides:

The supreme court ... [m] ay review any decision of a district court of appeal ... that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law.

The conflict between decisions "must be express and direct" and "must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986).

Accord Dept. of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986) (rejected "inherent" or "implied" conflict; dismissed petition). Neither the record, nor a concurring opinion, nor a

dissenting opinion can be used to establish jurisdiction. Reaves, supra; Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla.

1980) ("regardless of whether they are accompanied by a dissenting or concurring opinion"). In addition, it is the "conflict of decisions, not conflict of opinions or reasons that supplies jurisdiction for review by certiorari." Jenkins, 385 So. 2d at 1359.

In <u>Ansin v. Thurston</u>, 101 So. 2d 808, 810 (Fla. 1958), this Court explained:

It was never intended that the district courts of appeal should be intermediate courts. The revision and modernization of the Florida judicial system at the appellate level was prompted by the great volume of cases reaching the Supreme Court and the consequent delay in the administration of justice. The new article embodies throughout its terms the idea of a Supreme Court which functions as a supervisory body in the judicial system for the State, exercising appellate power in certain specified areas essential to the settlement of issues of public importance and the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice, with review by the district courts in most instances being final and absolute.

Accordingly, the determination of conflict jurisdiction distills to whether the First District Court's decision reached a result opposite to <u>Jones</u> or <u>Hartsfield</u> even though it contained

"substantially the same controlling facts," <u>Benefield v. State</u>,

160 So.2d 706 (Fla. 1964).

# The decision below is not in "express and direct" conflict with State v. Jones, 483 So. 2d. 433 (Fla. 1986), or Hartsfield v. State, 629 So. 2d 1020 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993).

At the outset, it is important to note that not only has

Petitioner improperly relied upon the trial-court record, but

also improperly relied upon the dissent (PJB 4-5). A fortiori,

the foundation of Petitioner's argument is his improper reliance

upon "reasoning" (PJB 3, 5: "conflicts with the reasoning") in

the purportedly conflicting opinions.

The <u>decision</u> in <u>Jones</u> struck down a roadblock as unconstitutional, whereas the <u>decision</u> of the First DCA here upheld the roadblock. Therefore, instead of focusing upon a dissent or a court's reasoning, we must look to the operative facts of <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u> and the operative facts contained within the First DCA's decision to determine if they are distinguishable.

A key fact common to <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u> is the total absence of written guidelines that would have reasonably circumscribed field-officer discretion. Here, "Operational Order 12.1.1(iv)(B)" (slip op. at 3-4) and the "Directed Patrol Worksheet" (slip op.

at 4) provided the written guidelines that were totally absent in <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u>. This key operative fact is distinguishable, rendering those cases not in conflict with the instant case.

Indeed, the First DCA expressly followed <u>Jones</u>:

- Citing to <u>Jones</u>, 483 So. 2d at 438, "the courts should view each set of guidelines as a whole in determining the plan's sufficiency" (slip op. at 8);
- Quoting <u>Jones</u> at length, "we do not find a violation of our own supreme court's written guidelines requirement" (slip op. at 10); and,
- "[N]o showing has been made that the trial court abused its discretion in finding the written guidelines sufficient under the circumstances" (slip op. at 11).

Furthermore, the First DCA properly applied (slip op. at 5 et seq.) the criteria enunciated in <u>Brown v. Texas</u>, 443 U.S. 47, 99 S.Ct. 2637, 61 L.Ed.2d 357 (1979), which this Court also applied in <u>Jones</u>. Here, in addition to the advance written guidelines, the DCA illuminated other criteria-related operative facts, which also distinguish this case from <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u>:

 The roadblock was initiated as a "response to area residents' complaints about speeding and a severe accident with serious injuries that had just occurred the previous weekend as a result of speeding and possibly faulty
equipment" (slip op. at 2); accordingly, "the goals of the
roadblock in question were to check for speeding, make a
visual inspection of vehicles, and to generally educate the
public" (slip op. at 6);

- The purpose of the roadblock was explained to motorists,
   and the roadblock was well-marked with uniformed officers,
   "safety vests," and "lighted cones" (slip op. at 4-5);
- "The roadblock method chosen was speedy and effective as demonstrated by the fact that 92 citations were issued in a five-hour period" (slip op. at 6);
- There was no showing whatsoever that the officers singled out Petitioner or any other motorist for any improper reason (See slip op. at 11: "record is devoid of any other indication of discretionary or arbitrary conduct on the part of the officers");
- "The record contains no evidence of complaints about the procedure, other than Campbell's" (Slip op. at 5); and,
- "The determination of whether violations occurred involved objective findings and left little to the discretion of the officers" (slip op. at 6).

DID THE FIRST DCA EXPRESSLY CONSTRUE THE FOURTH AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION? (Restated)

Petitioner's other jurisdictional argument is based upon Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) and Article V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. The State responds that the First DCA's decision engaged in no such construction requisite to jurisdiction. Instead, it merely applied pre-existing law, that is, it applied Jones' and Brown's criteria, including Jones' requirement of viewing "each set of guidelines as a whole," 483 So. 2d at 438.

Indeed, Petitioner's argument essentially admits that the lower tribunal applied the proper balancing tests: "... the First District, in balancing the legitimate government interest involved against the degree of intrusion ..." (PJB 9).

Moreover, Petitioner fails to provide any support whatsoever for his argument (PJB 9) that this case merits this Court's time and attention because of a recurrence of this type of situation. He also fails to show how any such frequency is pertinent to whether the DCA's decision "construed" the State or federal constitution rather than simply applying pre-existing principles. Indeed, the First DCA applied these principles in a manner consistent with <u>Jones</u> and <u>Hartsfield</u>, as discussed <u>supra</u>.

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing reason, the State respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline jurisdiction.